Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 1 of 7

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Verde Valley Fire District
Meeting Held January 26, 2021

A Regular Meeting of the Verde Valley Fire District Board of Directors was held on January 26,
2021 at 5:00p.m. in person at Station 31, 2700 E. Godard Road, Cottonwood, Arizona and
electronically (via Zoom) due to COVID-19 restrictions.

Board of Directors:

Ken Bishop, Chairman (Absent)
Donald Peck, Board Clerk
Coleen Gilboy

Matthew Kaempfe (via Zoom)
Robert Brummett (via Zoom)

Staff Present:

Joe Moore, Fire Chief

Lisa Elliott, Administrative Manager (via Zoom)
Phil Graham, Captain (via Zoom)

Paul Morales, Engineer (via Zoom)

Jonathan Pizzi, Firefighter (via Zoom)

Dillon Sherman, Firefighter (via Zoom)

Ivan Anderson, Firefighter

Joyce Driscoll, Administrative Assistant (via Zoom)

Others Present: Danny Johnson, Brenda Tranchina, Bryan Baker, Kia Salters, and others who
did not sign in.

CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Board Clerk Peck.
ROLL CALL - Board Chairman Bishop was absent; a quorum was present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG — Those present stood and said the pledge of
allegiance to the American flag.

MOMENT OF SILENCE — A moment of silence for firefighters who have lost their lives.
A moment of silence was observed for the 13 U.S. firefighters who lost their lives in the line of
duty last month.

ORDER OF THE AGENDA - Discussion and consideration of changing the order of the
agenda. No action was taken.

MINUTES - Discussion and consideration of the minutes of a Regular Meeting held
December 22, 2020. Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the minutes of the
Regular Meeting held December 22, 2020. Board Member Brummett seconded the motion. The

motion passed unanimously.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC - None.



Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 2 of 7

FINANCIAL REPORTS - Discussion and consideration of the financial report for the
previous month (including ambulance billing). Administrative Manager Elliott reviewed the
written financial reports:

s The District is 50% through the fiscal year.

Total cash in the General Fund at the end of December: $2,615,637.65

An overpayment to PEHP occurred, this is being corrected with the vendors.
Decrease in cash of $80,345 for December.

Positive cash flow of $756,582 for fiscal year to date.

Property Tax Revenues received in December: $550,985.10

Fire District Assistance Tax (FDAT) revenue for December was $45,524.83.
Some of the individual expenditures in December.

Total operating-only expenditures are within the year-to-date allocation.
Total expenditures are 13.82% lower than the year-to-date allocation.
Ambulance collections and call volume.

Wildland deployment billing and revenue.

Board Member Gilboy inquired about a cost associated with vehicles. Chief Moore explained
that they are placing new decals on the vehicles.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the Financial Report. Board Member Kaempfe
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

CHAIRPERSON'’S REPORT - A report from the Chairperson on his activities for the
District. No report.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS — Reports from the members of the Board on their
activities for the District. No reports.

UNION REPORT - A report from the District representative of the Sedona-Verde Valley
Firefighters Association on current events and activities for the past month. No report.

CHIEF’S REPORT - A report from the Fire Chief on current events and his recent
activities including, but not limited to: Public relations, meetings and events attended,
incident call volume, specific incidents and training. Chief Moore highlighted the following
from his written report:
s Meetings he attended in December.
Grants update.
An update on current hiring processes.
An update on policies issued in Lexipol.
An update on other special projects.
Social media posts.
Call report.
Vehicle expenses.

FIRE INSPECTOR REPORT - A report from the Fire Inspector on current events and
recent activities, including, but not limited to: Public education, fire prevention, meetings



Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 3 of 7

and events attended, training, permits issued/closed and inspections. Chief Moore,
referencing the Fire Inspector’s report, noted the following:
e Weed and hazard abatement issues for the month.
¢ Code enforcement actions.
¢ A limited number of child car-seats have been installed; emergency basis only due to
COVID-19.
Permits issued.
Inspections.

FIRE CHIEF HIRING PROCESS - Update and possible discussion regarding the current
fire chief hiring process. Brenda Tranchina of Human Resource Strategies, LLC reported that
the application period was extended in hopes of getting more candidate applications. She noted
that one more candidate application was received; however, the person did not meet the
minimum qualifications. She stated that five, highly qualified candidates will go through the
testing process being held on February 10 and 11™. She stated that a meet and greet will be held
on February 9; the location is to be determined. She suggested that each candidate give an
introduction via Zoom during the meet and greet; this will be coordinated with Chief Moore and
Administrative Manager Elliott. Ms. Tranchina stated that the testing process will be completed
on the February 11" and three finalists will go to the Board for interviews on that day in
executive sessions.

The Board Members agreed that this schedule would work for them.

Ms. Tranchina asked the Board if they wanted a union member to observe the process. Board
Member Gilboy was in favor, Board Clerk Peck and Board Member Brummett noted that they
are neutral on the issue. Board Member Kaempfe stated that he was in favor of a union member
attending; however, he was not sure that it is possible for a union member to be in an executive
session. Ms. Tranchina responded that she will get a legal opinion from the District’s attorney on
this, Overall, the Board Members did not have an objection to a union representative observing
the testing process and, if legally acceptable, the interviews.

Ms. Tranchina stated that she will have interview questions prepared for the Board. She noted
that the final hiring decision is usually made at a later date. The consensus of the Board was to
make the decision at a later date. Ms. Tranchina noted that each interview would be a separate
executive session.

Firefighter Anderson asked if Labor could submit potential interview questions for consideration.
The Board did not object. It was discussed that the questions, if there are any, need to go through
the Board Chairman or acting Board Chairman.

Chief Moore noted that with the timing of the process, and his last day being February 25", he
inquired if the Board would be interested in him extending his retirement date until March 15%,
Board Clerk Peck, and Board Members Kaempfe and Brummett stated that they would be in
favor of this. Board Member Gilboy had no preference. Chief Moore stated that he would extend
his retirement date to March 15, 2021.



Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 4 of 7

PURCHASE ORDER - Discussion and possible approval of a purchase order to Elite
Garage Doors and Gates to replace 8 bay doors and add LED stop/go lights at Station 31 in
the amount of $39,689.10. Chief Moore explained that this agenda item is to approve the
replacement of bay doors at Station 31. He noted that the amount budgeted for this project is
$40,000. He stated that it was very difficult to obtain the bids; it took a few months. Chief Moore
noted that for purchases over $25,000 generally public bidding is required. Administrative
Manager Elliott read from the Purchasing Policy, stating that the fire board can waive this
requirement if it is in the best interest of the District for various reasons.

Board Member Gilboy inquired as to how many other companies were contacted to submit bids.
Chief Moore stated that they contacted eight vendors, including out-of-town vendors as far away
as Tuscon, and only three would give quotes. Chief Moore continued to explain the difficulties
Staff had in getting these quotes. Board Clerk Peck stated that by waiting any longer the District
risks losing these bidders.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the purchase order to Elite Garage Doors and
Gates to replace 8 bay doors and add LED stop/go lights at Station 31 in the amount of

$39,689.10 with the understanding that due diligence was done and that the Board is waiving the
requirement for public bids as authorized by Section 4. B. of the Purchasing Policy. Board
Member Brummett seconded the motion.

In response to a question by Board Member Kaempfe, Administrative Manager Elliott explained
the public bidding process.

The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASE ORDER - Discussion and possible approval of a purchase order to Shephard-
Wesnitzer, Inc. for engineering services in the amount of $7,200. Chief Moore stated that this
is part of the $16,000 that Arizona Public Service (APS) agreed to pay to reimburse the District
for costs incurred by the District due to their project adjacent to District-owned property.

Board Member Gilboy inquired about this project being documented, etc. so the new fire chief
can continue with this process. Chief Moore responded that he will make sure to document this
for the new fire chief.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve the purchase order to Shephard-Wesnitzer. Inc.
for engineering services in the amount of $7.200 with the understanding that APS will be
reimbursing the District for this cost. The motion was seconded by Board Member Brummett.

Discussion followed of all the costs incurred as a result of the APS project.

The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASE ORDER - Discussion and possible approval of a purchase order to Verde Sol-
Air Services for a new air conditioning unit for a computer server room in the amount of
$3,250. Chief Moore stated that this amount is less than the amount required to be approved by
the Board; however, it is being expended out of Capital funds. He explained that the existing unit



Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 5 of 7

is over 10 years old, past its useful life, and that it is time to have it replaced in order to protect
the District’s server.

Board Member Kaempfe made a motion to approve a purchase order to Verde Sol-Air Services

for a new air conditioning unit for a computer server room in the amount of $3.250. Board
Member Gilboy seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASE ORDER - Discussion and pessible approval of a purchase order to Concept 2
for the purchase of three rowing exercise machines in the amount of $2,936.17. Chief Moore
stated that this expenditure is also a capital purchase. Board Member Gilboy noted a physical
fitness purchase for Peloton treadmills and membership fees made a couple of years ago which
was over budget and asked if that program was still being used. Chief Moore assured the Board
that it was being used and noted that the rowing machines gives personnel physical training
options.

Board Member Brummett inquired as to how many Staff members want this. Chief Moore stated
that there was a consensus of the group. Board Member Gilboy stated that she would like a
report from Peloton on the usage by the Staff.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve a purchase order to Concept 2 for the purchase
of three rowing exercise machines in the amount of $2,936.17. Board Member Brummett

seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

PENSION FUNDING POLICY- Discussion and possible adoption of Resolution #2021-01
a Pension Funding Policy. Administrative Manager Elliott explained that the policy is required
by state statute and must be updated annually. She explained that the policy must include the
following: How to maintain stability of the governing body’s contributions to the system, how
and when the governing body’s funding requirements of the system will be met, define the
governing body’s funding ratio target under the system and the timeline for reaching the targeted
funded ratio. Administrative Manager Elliott explained elements of the proposed updated policy.

Board Clerk Peck asked about potential bonding to pay down this liability. Administrative
Manager Elliott stated that she has no updates on that option at this time.

Board Member Kaempfe inquired about the minimum annual contribution. Administrative
Manager Elliott explained that this is determined by the Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System (PSPRS); however, their estimates are flawed. She stated that now there is a tool
provided by PSPRS that the District uses to determine its own calculation which is more
accurate. Board Member Kaempfe noted his concerns about the amount of the liability and the
calculations of PSPRS. Chief Moore noted that the District pays the entire year of payroll
liability up front every year to maximize interest earnings.

Board Member Gilboy noted that the District also contributed excess funds to help pay down the
debt and she noted how the PSPRS calculations are not accurate.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to adopt Resolution 2021-01 adopting a Pension Funding
Policy. Board Clerk Peck seconded. The motion passed unanimously.




Regular Meeting 01-26-21 Page 6 of 7

POLICY CHANGE - Discussion and possible approval of Resolution #2021-02 making
changes to the Residency Policy regarding required residency of select District Employees.
Chief Moore stated that this policy was written at a time where there was an assistant chief and
not battalion chiefs. He stated that the policy requires all chiefs to live within the Fire District;
however, this no longer applies because there is no assistant chief and the battalion chiefs work
on a 48/96 schedule as the crews do, so they are not required or expected to respond to an
assignment when off-duty.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve Resolution #2021-02 to approve changes to the
Residency Policy so that the residency requirement is only applicable to the Fire Chief. Board

Member Brummett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

AZ HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN GRANT PROJECTS - Discussion and possible approval
of Resolution #2021-03 authorizing the submittal of grant applications for projects to be
considered in Arizona’s FFY 2022 Highway Safety Plan. Administrative Assistant Driscoll
explained that a resolution is necessary in order to request grant funding from the Governor’s
Office of Highway Safety (GOHS). She stated that staff intends to request approximately
$10,000 in funding for child safety seats and funding for a cardiac monitor/defibrillator.

Board Member Gilboy made a motion to approve Resolution #2021-03 authorizing the submittal
of grant applications for projects to be considered in Arizona’s FFY 2022 Highway Safety Plan.

Board Member Kaempfe seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

IT CONTRACT - Discussion and possible action regarding the annual review and possible
renewal of the contract with Sunstate Technology Group for IT services and equipment.
Chief Moore stated that this agenda item is to review the District’s IT contract. He explained that
when the contract was approved, the Board asked that it be reviewed 90 days from April 30"
each year. He stated that if notice is not given by either party by March 1, 2021 the contract
automatically renews. He noted the issues Staff was having prior to switching to this company
and how happy Staff has been with their service. Chief Moore stated that Staff would like to
continue with this company. He stated that since the contract started the District’s needs have
evolved. He gave the example of a new server and upgrades approved by the Board, and an
increase from 32 computers to 41 computers, some of which was necessitated by
accommodations due to COVID-19. He explained that there will be increases due to these
changes, which looks like approximately an additional $24,000. Because this increase would go
into effect prior to the next fiscal year, he explained that he asked Sunstate to extend the current
contract until June 30™ and have the new contract start July 1% which will align with the
District’s fiscal year; which they agreed to. He stated that no action is necessary at this time;
however, a revised contract will be on an upcoming Board agenda.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS - A listing of items to be placed on a future agenda. The
following items were listed:
e Ambulance Collections RFP
APS
Capital Projects Plan/Capital Projects Committee
Apparatus/Vehicle Purchases
Budget Committee



Regular Mesting 01-26-21 Page 7 of 7

e IT Contract

ADJOURNMENT. With no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 6:36
p.m.

Submitte

ﬂf}briscal, Administrative Assistant

Don Peck, Board Clerk



